
CITY OF CEDARBURG 
MEETING OF COMMON COUNCIL 

 JANUARY 30, 2017 – 7:00 P.M. 
 
A meeting of the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, will be held on 
Monday, January 30, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall, W63 N645 Washington Avenue, 
Cedarburg, WI, in the Council Chambers.         
            

AGENDA 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  - Mayor Kip Kinzel 

 
2. MOMENT OF SILENCE  

 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  
4.        ROLL CALL:  Present – 

 
 
 

Common Council – Mayor Kip Kinzel, Council Members  
John Czarnecki, Jack Arnett, Dick Dieffenbach, Rick 
Verhaalen, Mitch Regenfuss, Patricia Thome, Mike 
O’Keefe 

     
5. STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES* - January 9, 2017 Meeting 
 
7. COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS** Comments from citizens on a 

listed agenda item will be taken when the item is addressed by the Council.  At this time 
individuals can speak on any topic not on the agenda for up to 5 minutes, time 
extensions at the discretion of the Mayor.  No action can be taken on items not listed 
except as a possible referral to committees, individuals or a future Council agenda item. 

 
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
* A. Public Hearing – Consider Ordinance No. 2017-02 amending Sec. 13-1-55(c) of 

the Zoning Code to allow residential use of existing single-family and two-family 
homes as a permitted use in the B-3 Central Business District; and action 
thereon (Plan Commission 11/07/16) 

 
* B. Public Hearing – Consider Ordinance No. 2017-03 to rezone/shift the limits of the 

100 year floodplain in an area within the third phase of the Glen at Cedar Creek 
Subdivision on the east side of Sheboygan Road south of Highway 60 from RS-
4/PUD/FFO Single Family Residential/Planned Unit Development/Flood Fringe 
Overlay to RS-4/PUD Single Family Residential/Planned Unit Development; and 
action thereon (Plan Commission 08/01/16) 

 
 
 
 
 

1 of 79



9. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 A. Referral to Plan Commission of the rezoning petition of St. Francis Borgia, c/o 

HSI Properties, LLC., for the St. Francis Borgia School Properties located at N44 
W6035 – N43 W6005 Hamilton Road and the parking lot property across the 
street, including the vacant parcel extending from the parking lot north to Spring 
Street; and action thereon 

 
* B. Consider the request of JW’s 19th Tee, LLC and Messina II, Inc. to amend the 

Class “B” beer license premise descriptions to exclude the dates of February 15, 
2017 through February 19, 2017 for the Columbia St. Mary’s Center at W67 
N890 Washington Avenue; and action thereon 

 
* C. Consider the Public Works and Sewerage Commission recommendation for 

future operations of the new public works yard waste drop-off site, including 
hours of operation, services provided, and user fee; and action thereon (Public 
Works and Sewerage Comm. 01/12/17) 

 
* D. Consider request from Police Chief to fill a vacant Dispatcher position; and action 

thereon 
 
* E. Consider revised Policy PR-1 - Park Reservations as it relates to athletic field 

reservations; and action thereon 
 
* F. Discussion and possible action on proposed Ordinance No. 2017-04 creating 

Sec. 7-1-26 of the Municipal Code of Ordinances pertaining to the keeping of 
domesticated chickens 

  
* G. Consider payment of bills for the period 01/12/17 through 01/23/17, transfers for 

the period 01/07/17 through 01/24/17, and payroll for the period 01/01/17 through 
01/14/17; and action thereon 

 
*** H. Consider License Applications; and action thereon 
   
 1. Consider approval of new Operators License applications for the period 

ending June 30, 2017 for Sandra J. Arndt, Michael R. Bennett, Cynthia A. 
Benning, Clare M. Bergquist, Micah J. Drengler, Margaret Knitter, Paul V. 
Micha, Amy B. Radtke, and Karen A. Rambadt; and action thereon 

 
 2. Consider approval of renewal Operators License application for the period 

ending June 30, 2017 for Terri J. Heidtke; and action thereon 
 
   3. Authorize issuance of a Festival Celebration Permit to Festivals of 

Cedarburg, Inc., for Winter Festival to be held on Saturday, February 18, 
2017 from 8:30 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. and on Sunday, February 19, 2017 
from 8:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.       

    
 
 

2 of 79



10.       REPORTS OF CITY OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS 
 
* A. Administrator’s Report 
 
11. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
** A. Comments and suggestions from citizens 
 B. Comments and announcements by Council Members  

C. Mayor’s Report  
 
12. ADJOURNMENT  

 
It is possible that members of, and possibly a quorum of members of other Boards,  

Committees and Commissions may be in attendance at this meeting.  
However, no formal action will be taken by any governmental body other than the Common Council.  

Attendance is for the purpose of information and exchange. 

 
 
* Information attached for Council; available through City Clerk’s Office.   
** Citizen comments should be primarily one-way, from citizen to the Council.  Each citizen who wishes to 

speak   shall be accorded one opportunity at the beginning of the meeting and one opportunity at the end 
of the meeting.  Comments should be kept brief.  If the comment expressed concerns a matter of public 
policy, response from the Council will be limited to seeking information or acknowledging that the citizen 
has been understood.  It is out of order for anyone to debate with a citizen addressing the Council or for 
the Council to take action on a matter of public policy.  The Council may direct that the concern be placed 
on a future agenda.  Citizens will be asked to state their name and address for the record and to speak 
from the lectern for the purposes of recording their comments. 

*** Information available through the Clerk’s Office. 
 

UPON REASONABLE NOTICE, EFFORTS WILL BE MADE TO 
ACCOMMODATE THE NEEDS OF INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES. 
PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AT (262) 375-7606 

E-MAIL:  cityhall@ci.cedarburg.wi.us 
01/26/17 ckm    

3 of 79

mailto:cityhall@ci.cedarburg.wi.us


 
  CITY OF CEDARBURG     CC20170109-1 
                                                             COMMON COUNCIL UNAPPROVED 
                                                                   January 9, 2017 
        
A regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, was held on 
Monday, January 9, 2017, at City Hall, W63 N645 Washington Avenue, second floor, Council 
Chambers.  Mayor Kinzel called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 
ROLL CALL: Present -  Common Council – Mayor Kip Kinzel, Council Members John 

Czarnecki, Jack Arnett, Dick Dieffenbach, Rick Verhaalen, Mitch 
Regenfuss, Patricia Thome, Mike O’Keefe 

                           
                    Also Present - City Administrator/Treasurer Christy Mertes, City Attorney Michael 

Herbrand, Director of Engineering and Public Works Tom Wiza, 
Police Chief Thomas Frank, Wastewater Superintendent Eric Hackert, 
Deputy City Clerk Amy Kletzien, interested citizens and news media 

 
STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
At Mayor Kinzel’s request, Deputy City Clerk Kletzien verified that notice of this meeting was 
provided to the public by forwarding the agenda to the City’s official newspaper, the News Graphic, 
to all news media and citizens who requested copies, and by posting in accordance with the 
Wisconsin Open Meetings law.  Citizens present were welcomed and encouraged to provide their 
input during the citizen comment portion of the meeting. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member O'Keefe, to approve the 
special and regular minutes of the December 12, 2016 meetings. 
 
Council Member Verhaalen made a correction to add Council Member Thome to the following 
sentence on page 12:  Council Member Verhaalen, Council Member Arnett, Council Member 
Thome, and Director Hilvo met with some representatives from the School District to collaborate 
and discuss reducing the costs of programs. 
 
Motion carried without a negative vote. 
 
COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS - None 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 
Swearing in of Patrol Officer Bradley Meyer 
 
Deputy City Clerk Kletzien swore in Patrol Officer Bradley Meyer. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 2017-02 COMMENDING RETIRING PUBLIC WORKS 
EMPLOYEE PAUL REGNITZ FOR HIS YEARS OF SERVICE TO THE CITY; AND 
ACTION THEREON 
 

4 of 79



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170109-2 
January 9, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
Motion made by Council Member Dieffenbach, seconded by Council Member Verhaalen, to adopt 
Resolution No.  2017-02 commending retiring Public Works employee Paul Regnitz for his years of 
service to the City.  Motion carried without a negative vote.  
 
CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 2017-03 COMMENDING RETIRING WASTEWATER 
TREATMENT PLANT OPERATOR TRACEY RINK FOR HIS YEARS OF SERVICE; 
AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Motion made by Council Member O'Keefe, seconded by Council Member Thome, to adopt 
Resolution No.  2017-03 commending retiring Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator Tracey Rink 
for his years of service to the City.  Motion carried without a negative vote.  
 
CONSIDER AMENDMENT #4 TO THE PRAIRIE VIEW SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Director Wiza explained that Homes by Towne had attempted to complete all subdivision 
improvements for Prairie View Subdivision Phase II in fall of 2016, but unfavorable weather 
conditions caused them to fall short.  They managed to place the concrete curbing and binder 
asphalt, but sidewalks and Cable TV installation will have to wait until spring. 
 
He continued to explain that the conditions for placing the asphalt were less than ideal and Homes 
by Towne has agreed to inspect and repair any failed asphalt in summer of 2017 and then delay the 
final asphalt surface placement until fall of 2018. 
 
This amendment to the Development Agreement revises the timetable accordingly and extends the 
bond expiration date to December 31, 2018.  
 
In answer to Council Member Verhaalen’s question regarding the change to the time period from 
2010 – 2017, Director Wiza stated that this is the fourth amendment to the original Prairie View 
Subdivision agreement.  
 
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member Arnett, to approve 
amendment #4 to the Prairie View Subdivision Development Agreement.  Motion carried without a 
negative vote.  
 
CONSIDER REQUEST FROM POLICE CHIEF TO FILL A VACANT DISPATCHER 
POSITION; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Chief Frank explained that one of the emergency services dispatchers has submitted a letter of 
resignation and his last day is January 10, 2017. 
 
In answer to Council Member Dieffenbach’s questions, Chief Frank stated that the Department has 
six dispatchers and that provides them with bare minimum coverage.  In regard to a joint dispatch 
center, he stated that this was explored during a two year study period and it was determined that 
none of the current facilities were large enough to house a dispatch center for the entire County.  It 
would have been more expensive and less efficient to do so. 
 

5 of 79



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170109-3 
January 9, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
Council Member Dieffenbach asked if the southern Ozaukee County municipalities have considered 
their own dispatch center.  Chief Frank stated that discussions have taken place over the last several 
months to determine if this is a possibility. 
 
Council Member Dieffenbach stated that he supports replacing the dispatcher and commended 
Chief Frank for reaching out to area Departments. 
 
Council Member Czarnecki asked how many dispatchers work each day.  Chief Frank stated that 
there is one dispatcher per shift and a dispatcher is added for a power shift during second shift hours 
when it is the busiest.  On rare occasions, five dispatchers may work in a 24 hour period.  Chief 
Frank explained that the dispatchers are responsible for clerical duties during their shifts. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Regenfuss, seconded by Council Member Czarnecki, to approve 
the Police Chief’s request to fill a vacant Dispatcher position.  Motion carried without a negative 
vote.  
 
CONSIDER ORDINANCE NO. 2017-01 AMENDING SEC. 2-4-17 OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES TO ELIMINATE THE COMMUNITY POOL COMMISSION AND 
AMENDING SEC. 2-4-6 OF THE CODE PERTAINING TO THE PARKS, RECREATION 
AND FORESTRY BOARD; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes explained that Ordinance No. 2017-01 has been drafted to 
eliminate the Community Pool Commission, as there is no longer a pool agreement with the Town 
of Cedarburg.  The ordinance also modifies the section of the Code pertaining to the Parks, 
Recreation and Forestry Board so that the pool is under the purview of the Board.  Finally, there is a 
change in the membership section of the Parks, Recreation and Forestry Board to eliminate the 
provision that the Board Chair is also a member of the Plan Commission.  This change was made to 
the section of the Code pertaining to the Plan Commission in 2012, but was never changed in this 
section.  
 
In answer to Council Member Verhaalen’s question, City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes explained 
that two senior adults need to serve on the Parks, Recreation and Forestry Board because they 
oversee the Senior Center. 
 
Council Member Dieffenbach stated that he was opposed to abolishing the Community Pool 
Commission because he hopes the City and Town of Cedarburg can work together in the future. 
 
Mayor Kinzel stated that the Commission can be reinstated if there is another joint pool agreement 
in the future. 
 
Motion made by Council Member O'Keefe, seconded by Council Member Czarnecki, to adopt 
Ordinance No. 2017-01 amending Sec. 2-4-17 of the Code of Ordinances to eliminate the 
Community Pool Commission and amending Sec. 2-4-16 of the Code pertaining to the Parks, 
Recreation and Forestry Board.  Motion carried with Council Members Czarnecki, Arnett, 
Verhaalen, Regenfuss, Thome and O'Keefe voting in favor and Council Member Dieffenbach 
opposed. 
 
 

6 of 79



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170109-4 
January 9, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
CONSIDER AGREEMENT WITH AGILEX FOR ACCOUNTS PAYABLES; AND ACTION 
THEREON 
 
City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes explained that in an effort to create efficiencies in time and 
money, the Treasurer’s office would like to work with Agilex in the payment of City vendors.  To 
do this, the City would send a list to Agilex of vendors to pay, the City would send an ACH 
payment to Agilex for the total amount due to all vendors, and Agilex would make the payment to 
the vendor via credit card payment.  The vendor will receive an email with a one-time use only 
credit card number.  The City will receive a rebate with this process; one half percent will be 
retained by Agilex and the balance will be paid to the City.  Paul Hultgren, Ashley York, Robb 
Thiel were available to answer questions. 
 
Paul Hultgren explained that they work with municipalities, schools and businesses to help optimize 
the payment process.  It is a free service and based on their review of our accounts, they estimate 
that the City could earn approximately $75,000 in rebates.   
 
In answer to Council Member Dieffenbach’s questions, Paul Hultgren explained that Agilex will 
rebate the City on a monthly basis.  They will contact our vendors to see if they accept Master Card 
on the City’s behalf.    
 
In answer to Council Member Thome’s question, Paul Hultgren stated that Agilex is on the agenda 
to work with the Village of Grafton.  City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes received references from 
the School District of New Berlin, Lake Geneva Joint #1 School District, Kobussen Buses, Merton 
Community Schools, and Lake Geneva (2 districts). 
 
In answer to Council Member Verhaalen’s question, Paul Hultgren stated that Agilex has been in 
business for 13 months. 
 
Council Member Arnett asked if the rebate was coming from the payee.  Paul Hultgren explained 
that the payee is paying the Master Card fee, which is passed along to the vendor. This is an 
attractive method of payment because they normally get paid faster through Master Card. 
 
Mayor Kinzel commented that it will save the City from issuing so many checks each month. 
 
City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes added that it will save on paper, time and postage. 
 
Council Member Dieffenbach stated that it will help with bank reconciliations. 
 
Council Member Dieffenbach asked if Agilex was insured and requested that Agilex provide copies 
of their insurance coverage to the City. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Dieffenbach, seconded by Council Member Arnett, to approve 
the agreement with Agilex for accounts payables.  Motion carried with Council Members 
Czarnecki, Arnett, Dieffenbach, Verhaalen, Thome and O'Keefe voting in favor and Council 
Member Regenfuss recusing himself. 
 
CONSIDER PAYMENT OF BILLS FOR THE PERIOD 12/09/16 THROUGH 12/21/16, 
TRANSFERS FOR THE PERIOD 12/10/16 THROUGH 12/30/16, AND PAYROLL FOR 
THE PERIOD 12/04/16 THROUGH 12/31/16; AND ACTION THEREON 

7 of 79



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170109-5 
January 9, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
Motion made by Council Member Dieffenbach, seconded by Council Member Czarnecki, to 
approve payment of bills for the period 12/09/16 through 12/21/16, transfers for the period 12/10/16 
through 12/30/16, and payroll for the period 12/04/16 through 12/31/16.  Motion carried without a 
negative vote.   
  
CONSIDER LICENSE APPLICATIONS; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Motion made by Council Member O'Keefe, seconded by Council Member Czarnecki, to approve 
new Operators License applications for the period ending June 30, 2017 for Andrew William 
Conley, Ashley J. Daley, and Patrick R. Riley.  Motion carried without a negative vote.  
 
ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes stated that Mayor Kinzel, City Attorney Herbrand, City 
Planner Censky and she met with HSI and the neighbors of St. Francis Borgia and their attorneys 
last week Tuesday.  HSI and the neighbors are going to meet to come to a compromise. 
 
The Community Development Authority is tentatively meeting on January 24 to discuss a developer 
agreement.  Spending to date on this project is $41,000. 
 
In answer to Council Member Czarnecki’s questions, City Attorney Herbrand stated that a good 
majority of the $41,000 has resulted in getting up to speed on the site and knowing the possibilities.  
It is money well spent and is not wasted.  City Attorney Herbrand explained that the deliverables 
will be providing needed information to move forward on a developer’s agreement. 
 
City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes explained that the City’s health insurance plan will not change 
this year; however, Caremark will be the new prescription provider.  This was decided at the end of 
December because the insurance provider could not make their proposal work with the prescription 
provider.  Therefore, the City is paying an 8% increase in health insurance instead of the 12% 
increase that was originally proposed to keep the current plan.  
 
In answer to Council Member Dieffenbach’s question, City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes stated 
that the financial picture has not changed. 
 
City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes stated that an insurance review for 2018 will take place this 
summer. 
  
COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS - None 
 
COMMENTS & ANNOUNCEMENTS BY COUNCIL MEMBERS  
 
Council Member Czarnecki stated that elected officials are elected to a representative government 
and representative democracy.  When Council Members are elected they are required and agree to 
be knowledgeable and engaged in all aspects of the City (budgets, services benefits, and costs).  
They are required to be dispassionate and to address the needs of all residents and to consider all of 
the needs of the City, along with considering todays needs and future needs of the City.   
 
He continued by saying that the No Vote group is: 

8 of 79



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170109-6 
January 9, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 

• not listening to the needs of the residents or the City and they do not care about the City’s 
needs 

• not listening to the needs of the Downtown businesses – bars, restaurants, shops and salons 
• not listening to the needs of the School District 
• not concerned about the budgets for the pool, parks, Police Department, Recreation 

Department or the Library 
• not concerned about the dwindling volunteers for the Fire Department or the budget impact 

of such 
• not concerned about tree trimming, trash removal, road repair, brush pick-up or flower 

baskets  
• not concerned about the rising costs of City personnel or their benefits. 

 
The No Vote group is fractured and is not one group.  The No Vote group(s) has different opinions, 
agendas, hopes and goals.  
 
Parts of this group are hiring attorneys and are trying to “negotiate” with the City and the developer 
on behalf of their individual groups. 
 
The residents of Cedarburg elected the Council Members to represent them and the City.  The No 
Vote group elected us too…..they are represented by us as well. 
 
Council Member Czarnecki shared an example of putting passion before the resident’s needs….a 
rallied cause before the City’s future.  Former Mayor John Kuerschner shared this story before he 
became a Council Member in the late 1980s when the Piggly Wiggly was proposing their store and 
he lived across the street.  He was opposed of the project because it was across from his home.  He 
and others brought in legal counsel to stop the project.  They were able to get a petition to force a 
super majority; therefore, the project was delayed.  But ultimately the store was approved.  What 
started out as an emotional response to change in his neighborhood, Mr. Kuerschner quickly came 
to understand the convenience and benefit of having this amenity across the street from his house. 
 
Council Member Czarnecki stated that it is the Council’s duty to do what is in the best interest of 
the City. 
  
Council Member Verhaalen introduced the idea of the Council adopting a unanimous vote process, 
which would require a unanimous vote the first time an item is brought before the Council for a 
vote.  If anyone has any doubts about the decision, then one no vote will bring the item back at the 
next meeting.  Then when the item comes back a second time it would require a majority vote.    
The down side to this process is that it would delay items.  However, when there is not much time 
to review an item, this process would allow extra time to review it.  He learned that West Bend uses 
this process and he is presenting it to the Cedarburg Common Council for consideration in the 
future. 
 
Council Member Arnett provided the following comments: 
 
Public Works Building 
The Public Works & Sewerage Commission is meeting this Thursday, January 12.  The Public 
Works Building was responsible for just over 80% of the tax increase this year.  The average 
homeowner is paying $12 per month or about $144 per year for this new facility.  One of the 

9 of 79



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170109-7 
January 9, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
popular selling points for the new facility was significantly increased drop off times for lawn waste.  
Council Member Arnett feels strongly that residents who use the drop off facility should not be 
charged an additional annual fee for an access card.  He would propose an access card which carries 
a deposit that is refundable if the card is returned.  The cost of the card should be the approximate 
cost of issuing the card (maybe $25) or whatever is appropriate.  Council Member Arnett urged the 
Commission to not charge our residents any additional annual and ongoing fees to use this facility 
for which they are already paying dearly. 

Liquor License Changes 
Council Member Arnett requested that the Clerk mail the revised law pertaining to hours of 
operation to all active license holders in the City. 

Saint Francis Borgia 
Council Member Arnett is concerned about some of the divisive rhetoric which has entered our 
community, and he addressed it in a public forum and open meeting as follows: 

On page 77 of today’s Council package, we read:  “City staff met with HSI and the neighbors of 
SFB and their attorneys on Tuesday.” (January 3rd) 

Additionally, we read: “The neighbors of the property have hired an attorney, and will be meeting 
with HSI next week to work on a plan that the neighbors could endorse…” 

To me this all sounds positive, the City, the Developer, and those opposed to the zoning change are 
all gathering to share information and communicate and listen to each other. 

However, in a social media post from four days ago, a leader of the opposition group states: “As of 
Tuesday afternoon, HSI has not made any changes to their proposal in response to Common 
Council requests and the public hearing on November 14. They claim that the community is "afraid 
of change" as they continue to push for the 26.2 units per acre development on a site that is 
recommended to have a maximum of 10.8 units per acre according to the City's Comprehensive 
plan.  As a result of their unresponsiveness, the SFB discussion has been removed from the January 
9, 2017 agenda.  It was previously removed from the December 12, 2016 agenda due to a lack of 
response.” 

By saying “as a result of their unresponsiveness…” this individual is implying that the Council has 
pulled the discussion from the agenda due to the developer’s “lack of response.”   

• Why does this individual omit that he was actually at the meeting with the developer? 
• Why does he omit the fact that it was HSI, not the Council, that pulled the agenda item so 

that HSI could meet with the opposition group and listen?  
• Why does he omit the fact that all sides are actually working together? 

 
Council Member Arnett shared a picture of the front page of the opposition group’s online petition 
that was printed a few hours ago.   

10 of 79



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170109-8 
January 9, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 

• Why does the opposition group still have the oversized rendering on its front page….a 
rendering which has been withdrawn and was never presented to this Council?   

• The Journal Sentinel published a revised rendering.  Why hasn’t the opposition group? 
 

The original online petition mentioned “four-stories”, language which has subsequently been 
removed.  I have a question for the manager of that online petition:   

• How many signed the petition before you removed the reference to four-stories? 
• Why does this group still have a “flyover” rendering on the front page of its web page which 

is seven months old, has been withdrawn by the developer, and has never even been 
presented to the Common Council? 

The result of this rhetoric has been to create confusion and divide the City.   

Council Member Arnett said there should be a real debate on the impact of this project. As a 
Council, they have a responsibility and an obligation to govern based on the real facts, and the 
actual most recent proposal, not dated renderings and on-line hyperbole.  

An elderly woman visited City Hall a few weeks ago, and begged that the City not allow the SFB 
Church to be torn down.  In my opinion, she and many others are victims of this hyperbole. 

For these reasons, Council Member Arnett insisted that whatever final plan is presented by the 
developer, be available for public viewing in City Hall and the Public Library for at least two weeks 
prior to any vote.  He asked to debate the actual facts once they are finally available. 

Council Member Arnett called on the opposition groups to do the same, to update your sites by 
removing dated and withdrawn proposals, tell the truth about ongoing cooperation/discussions, and 
when available, present the revised final plans prior to the vote, so that we are all dealing with the 
same facts and can have a healthy debate on the actual proposal instead of internet rumors.  He 
asked for a civil and factual debate on the positives and negatives of this proposal and how it will 
affect the City in the future. 

MAYOR’S REPORT  
 
Mayor Kinzel issued a Proclamation for School Choice Week in Cedarburg – January 22-28, 2017. 
 
ADJOURNMENT – CLOSED SESSION 
 
Motion made by Council Member O'Keefe, seconded by Council Member Thome, to adjourn to 
closed session at 7:53 p.m. pursuant to State Statutes 19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate the 
investing of public funds or conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or 
bargaining reasons require a closed session, more specifically, to discuss negotiations with the 
Cedarburg Police Officers’ Association, Local 223.  Approval of closed session minutes of 
November 28, 2016.  Motion carried unanimously on a roll call vote. 
 
 
 

11 of 79



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170109-9 
January 9, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
 
Motion made by Council Member Dieffenbach, seconded by Council Member Thome, to reconvene 
the meeting at 8:07 p.m.  Motion carried unanimously on a roll call vote. 
 
DISCUSSION REGARDING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF CEDARBURG 
AND THE CEDARBURG POLICE OFFICERS’ ASSOCIATION, LOCAL 223, AND 
CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 2017-01 RATIFYING THE AGREEMENT; AND ACTION 
THEREON 
 
Motion made by Council Member O'Keefe, seconded by Council Member Thome, to ratify the 
agreement between the City of Cedarburg and the Cedarburg Police Officers’ Association, Local 
223 by adopting Resolution No.  2017-01.  Motion carried without a negative vote.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion made by Council Member Dieffenbach, seconded by Council Member Arnett, to adjourn 
the meeting at 8:09 p.m.  Motion carried without a negative vote.       
        
      Amy D. Kletzien, MMC/WCPC 
      Deputy City Clerk 

12 of 79



 

 CITY OF CEDARBURG 

MEETING DATE:  January 30, 2016                                                   ITEM NO: 8. A. 
 
TITLE: Consider Ordinance No. 2017-02 amending Sec. 13-1-55(c) of the Zoning Code to allow residential 
use of existing single-family and two-family homes as a permitted use in the B-3 Central Business District; 
and action thereon (Plan Commission 11/07/16)   
 

ISSUE SUMMARY:   
The issue of whether or not to list residential uses as permitted in the B-3 District has been discussed on and 
off for years and out of fear of potentially losing the business climate in our downtown area to residential uses, 
the issue was dropped a number of years age. This issue originally surfaced back when a home owner along 
Cleveland Avenue located within the B-3 District was trying to refinance his home at which time it was 
discovered that single-family structures/uses are not technically permitted in this District. Consequently, his 
property title was clouded by the legal non-conforming status of the use and structure.  
 
Council Members are reminded that the impacts of having a nonconforming use/structure can be limiting 
going forward. More specifically, Total lifetime structural repairs or alterations are limited to no more fifty 
percent (50%) of the City’s equalized assessed value over the lifetime of the structure unless it is permanently 
changed to conform to the rules of the B-3 District. Furthermore, if the existing residential use is ever 
discontinued for 12 consecutive months, any future use of the structure must conform to the rules of the B-3 
District. Accordingly, to resolve this problem, Council Members are being asked to consider this zoning text 
amendment which is intended to simply add to the Permitted Uses of the B-3 District: (53) Residential use of 

only single-family and two-family structures that existed prior to the adoption of this Ordinance. 

 
Staff notes that when viewing historic photos of Cedarburg, it is obvious that residential uses were part of the 
original fabric of the downtown area. Only with the introduction of zoning in the 1920’s did communities begin 

to categorize and separate uses into different areas/zones resulting in the development patterns of today. 
Because Cedarburg’s downtown area predates our own zoning ordinance, its original development pattern 
includes a mix of residential, institutional and commercial structures that add to its charm.  
 
Our records reveal that at their September 2013 meeting, the Landmarks Commission also weighed in on this 
issue when they made the following motion: the Landmarks Commission recommends that residential usage 
of the buildings in the B-3 Central Business District be permitted, and that if a building is converted to 
commercial usage, it should be allowed to be converted back to residential usage. This recommendation I 
based on the following points: 

 Historically, Cedarburg was a mix of residential and commercial buildings. 
 The mix of architectural styles and uses adds to the City’s attractiveness. 
 If the Code change is enacted, the City could potentially eliminate all residential use on the first      floor 

of buildings in the B-3 District. 
 There is more potential for long-term use of the downtown structures if owners can use them for 

commercial or residential. This offers economic benefits to the property owner, making the building 
more appealing for an owner to purchase and retain. 

 Should there be a significant economic down turn, building owners who are unable to rent out their 
storefronts could hypothetically simply convert buildings into housing rental units. While we desire to 
retain the commercial feel of the downtown, it is imperative that the buildings be maintained. It is better 
that a building be converted to residential use than for it to sit vacant and deteriorate. 

 Zoning ordinances, over time, often kill historic towns when a mix of uses is no longer permitted. This 
Commission does not want to see the business district buildings homogenized.   

         
 

13 of 79



Staff has completed a drive-by survey of the downtown area and found that only about 28 structures would fall 
into the category that could be affected by this code change. This list includes 21 structures along 
Washington Avenue, 4 along Western Avenue, 2 each on Center and Cleveland Streets, and 1 on Columbia 
Road. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve. 
 
BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: At their November 7, 2016 meeting, the 
Plan Commission recommended approval by unanimous vote. 
 
BUDGETARY IMPACT: N/A 
   

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Ordinance Number 2017-02 
 Plan Commission minutes from the November 7, 2016 meeting. 
 List of Residential Structures in the B-3 District. 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:  

Greg Zimmershied  
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Jonathan P. Censky, City Planner, 262-375-7610 
 

 

 

 

14 of 79



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2017-02 

 

An Ordinance Amending Section 13-1-55(c) of the 

Zoning Code Pertaining to Permitted Uses 

in the B-3 Central Business District 

 

The Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, hereby ordains as follows: 

 

SECTION 1.  Section 13-1-55(c) of the City of Cedarburg Municipal Code is hereby 

amended to read as follows: 

 

13-1-55 B-3 CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT 

 

 (c) Permitted Uses.  

 (61) Residential use of single-family and two-family structures that 

existed prior to the adoption of this Ordinance.  

 

 SECTION 2. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and 

publication as provided by law. 

 

Passed and adopted this 30
th

 day of January, 2017. 

 

__________________________ 

       Kip Kinzel, Mayor 

Attest: 

 

      

Constance K. McHugh, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

      

Michael P. Herbrand, City Attorney 

  

15 of 79



PLAN COMMISSION PLN20161107-5 
November 7, 2016 UNAPPROVED MINUTES 
 
Action: 
Commissioner Zimmerschied moved to recommend rezoning the Carriage Trace 
Apartment Complex from RM-2 to RM-2/PUD as requested. The motion was seconded 
by Mayor Kinzel and carried without a negative vote, with Vice Chairperson Burgoyne 
excused. 
 
MOTION TO REMOVE FROM THE TABLE AND DISCUSSION REGARDING A 
ZONING TEXT AMENDMENT RECOMMENDATION TO ADD “RESIDENTIAL USE 
OF SINGLE-FAMILY AND TWO-FAMILY STRUCTURES” TO THE LIST OF 
PERMITTED USES IN THE B-3 BUSINESS DISTRICT 
 
Commissioner Zimmerschied recused himself from the meeting. 
 
Action to Remove from the Table: 
Council Member Czarnecki moved to remove the item from the table. The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Poellot and carried without a negative vote, with Vice 
Chairperson Burgoyne excused. 
 
Discussion: 
Planner Censky noted that the issue of whether or not to list residential uses as 
permitted uses in the B-3 District was held over from the September 6, 2016 meeting. It 
should be noted that since the October 2016 meeting, staff has reviewed the inventory 
list that Commissioners received for the September meeting and has removed a few 
structures from that list because they were never used as a residence. Having 
completed that survey, the list now stands at twenty-eight structures that would fall into 
the category for consideration, which includes twenty-one structures along Washington 
Avenue, four along Western Avenue, two each on Center and Cleveland Streets, and 
one on Columbia Road. 
 
Commissioners concluded it was unlikely that the commercial character of downtown 
Cedarburg would disappear. They agreed that commercial is the highest and best use 
for the downtown. It was also concluded that the change in the Code would make it 
easier for property owners to keep their structures occupied. It was noted that the owner 
of a ranch home on Cleveland Street found it difficult to refinance due to the non-
conformity of its use and another property owner is finding it difficult to sell without the 
possibility of residential use. 
 
Greg Zimmerschied, owner of homes on Western Road, pointed out that his buildings 
have always been residential properties and residential is likely their best use. 
 
Action: 
A motion was made by Commissioner von Bargen, seconded by Council Member 
Czarnecki, to recommend amendment of the B-3 Central Business District by adding 
“(53) Residential use of single-family and two-family structures that existed prior to the 
adoption of this Ordinance.” under Permitted Uses. The motion carried without a 

16 of 79



PLAN COMMISSION PLN20161107-6 
November 7, 2016 UNAPPROVED MINUTES 
 
negative vote, with Commissioner Zimmerschied recused and Vice Chairperson 
Burgoyne excused. 
 
Commissioner Zimmerschied returned to his position on the Plan Commission. 
 
COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS BY PLAN COMMISSIONERS 
 
No comments or announcements were offered. 
 
MAYOR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
There were no announcements. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Cain, seconded by Mayor Kinzel, to adjourn the 
meeting at 7:50 p.m. The motion carried without a negative vote, with Vice Chairperson 
Burgoyne excused. 
 
      Darla Drumel, 
      Administrative Secretary 

17 of 79



18 of 79



19 of 79



 

 

 CITY OF CEDARBURG 

MEETING DATE: January 30, 2017                                                                                ITEM NO: 8. B. 
 
TITLE: Consider Ordinance No. 2017-03 to rezone/shift the limits of the 100 year floodplain in an area within 
the third phase of the Glen at Cedar Creek Subdivision on the east side of Sheboygan Road south of 
Highway 60 From RS-4/PUD Single Family Residential/Planned Unit Development/Flood Fringe Overlay to 
RS-4/PUD Single Family Residential/Planned Unit Development; and action thereon (Plan Commission 
08/01/2017)   
 
ISSUE SUMMARY:   
As part of the third phase of the Glen at Cedar Creek Subdivision, the applicant is proposing to shift the limits 
of the 100-year floodplain from the rear of those lots along the east side of the long cul-de-sac in this phase 
toward the creek and then increase the limits of floodplain in the area just northeast of the end of that cul-de-
sac. (See the attached exhibit). Procedurally, this shift will be accomplished through the rezoning as 
summarized in the attached ordinance and is needed for this phase of the development to move forward.  
 
Since receiving approval of the preliminary plat in December 2015, the applicant has been working to address 
the technical issues necessary to satisfy the requirements of the Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources. Having completed that work, they have now received consent from the WDNR and FEMA to 
move ahead with this rezoning request. This floodplain change will allow for the introduction of fill to raise the 
elevation of the five aforementioned lots to improve their buildable status.   
 
According to Section 13-1-66 (j) ((b) of the Zoning Code: Ordinance amendments may be made upon 

petition of any interested party according to the provisions of s. 62.23, Stats., for cities and villages, 

or 59.69, Stats., for counties. Such petitions shall include all necessary data required by Sec. 13-1-

66(o) and 13-1-66(i) (a) (2). 

1. The proposed amendment shall be referred to the zoning agency for a public hearing and 

recommendation to the governing body. The amendment and notice of public hearing shall be 

submitted to Department Regional office for review prior to the hearing. The amendment 

procedure shall comply with the provisions of s. 2.23, Stats., for cities and villages or s. 59.69, 

Stats, for counties. 
2. No amendment shall become effective until reviewed and approved by the Department. 
3. All persons petitioning for a map amendment that obstructs flow, increasing regional flood 

height 0.01 foot or more, shall obtain flooding easements or other appropriate legal 

arrangements from all adversely affected property owners and notify local units of government 

before the amendment can be approved by the governing body. 
4. For amendments in areas with no water surface profiles, the zoning agency or board shall 

consider data submitted by the Department, the zoning administrator’s visual on-site 

inspections and other available information. 
 
STAFF COMMENTS: 

On November 30, 2016, the City received a Letter of Map Amendment (LOMA) from The Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) indicating that they have conditionally approved this adjustment. Attached is the 
LOMA with the conditions of approval. Staff recommends approval subject to the conditions listed in the 
aforementioned LOMA Letter. 
 
BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: At its August 1, 2016 meeting, the Plan 
Commission recommended approval by unanimous vote. 
 
BUDGETARY IMPACT:  N/A 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Ordinance No. 2017-03 20 of 79



 Minutes of the August 1, 2016 Plan Commission meeting. 
 Letter of Map amendment from FEMA 

 Floodplain Boundary Exhibit A 
 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:  John Wahlen – Cornerstone Development 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Jonathan P. Censky, City Planner, 262-375-7610 
 
 

21 of 79



 

ORDINANCE NO.  2017-03 

 

An Ordinance Rezoning For Modifications to the Location 

of the 100-Year Floodplain Area within the Third 

Phase of the Glen at Cedar Creek Subdivision 

(East Side of Sheboygan Road South of Highway 60) 

 

The proposed ordinance having been submitted to the City Plan Commission for recommendation and 

notice having been given pursuant to Wis. Statute, the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, 

Wisconsin, does hereby ordain as follows:      

 

The following described real estate situated in the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, presently 

being RS-4/PUD/FFO Single-Family Residential District/Planned Unit Development/Flood 

Fringe Overlay is hereby rezoned to RS-4/PUD Single-Family Residential District/Planned 

Unit Development in accordance with “Exhibit A” floodplain boundary.  (Note:  the area 

within the described real estate presently zoned C-4 Upland Conservancy shall remain C-4): 

 

The area of the 100-year floodplain along the rear portion of the lots located along the east 

side of the long cul-de-sac within the adjacent outlet. 

 

 This ordinance shall take effect upon its passage and publication as provided by law. 

 

 Passed and adopted this 30
th

 day of January, 2017. 

 

                                                     ________________________________ 

                                                     Kip Kinzel, Mayor    

Countersigned:    

 

______________________________ 

Constance K. McHugh, City Clerk 

 

 

Approved as to form:  

 

_________________________________ 

Michael P. Herbrand, City Attorney 

22 of 79



23 of 79



24 of 79



25 of 79



26 of 79



27 of 79



28 of 79



29 of 79



30 of 79



31 of 79



32 of 79



33 of 79



CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE: January 30, 2016                                                            ITEM NO:   9. B. 

 

                           

TITLE:   Consider the request of JW’s 19
th

 Tee, LLC and Messina II, Inc. to amend the Class “B” beer license 

premise descriptions to exclude the dates of February 15, 2017 through February 19, 2017 for the Columbia St. 

Mary’s Center at W67 N890 Washington Avenue; and action thereon 

 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY:   The Milwaukee Curling Club is holding a large tournament at the Columbia St. Mary’s 

Center from February 15 through February 19.  The premises descriptions of the Class “B” beer licenses held 

by JW’s 19
th

 Tee, LLC and Messina II, Inc. at that location need to be amended prior to a temporary Class “B” 

beer license being issued directly to the Curlers enabling them to sell beer and wine coolers during their 

international bonspiel.  This will allow the Curling Club to sell beer and wine coolers for this event. 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:    N/A 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:   N/A 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:  N/A 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:     Requests from both businesses to amend the premise descriptions 

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:     Curling Club/Ozaukee County 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:           Connie McHugh 
 
 

 

34 of 79



íl ©1M 11'\~cq]l\Jl®~tto ~ fü©1tt ttllil® [P)ll'®MÖ~®~ rdl®~©ll'D[P)tèÖ(Q)ll'il (Q)f fü® f®ll'M®ll'iltè®rdl m~itt ib®"9®m@® ílll(G®ll'il~® 
,~~l\Jl®rdl to \ ~--(_ LL , lb)® MCQlrdlíliro®rdl tt© ®~©íll\Jlrdl® 
ttllil® rdl©Jtt®~ ©f f®ib)mmy 4l5 ttllilml!JJ@llil f®ib)m©Jll)f 4l~\ 2(0)4J1, föll' ttllil® C©íll!Jlmibn©J St 1Ml©111}'1~ C®ll'iltt®ll' 
[P)ll'@mn~®~ ílCQlt©Jtè®tdl at W61 IN!f8l~(OJ W©J~llilílll'il@tè@lnl /Av®, C®dl©Jll'iblVlll'@, Wíl 53(0)4J21 \PllVlll'~l\Jl©Jll'iltt tt@ ~º 
4l 2!5º(0J~ (3»(1lil) ©f fü® Wn~©(Q)ll'il~nll'il Stt©JttlVltt®~º íl ©Jm ll'®cqJlVl®~ttill'il@ ttllili~ m@dlöíílt©Jtèi@ll'il ~@ ttllil©Jtt ttlh® 
MoílW©ll\Jlik®® Cmfü'\lgJ CíllVllb\ wlliln©llil ®~©íll\Jl~ßV®ílW ©©©l\Jl\P)ß®~ ©liíldl l\Jlttnílö~®~ ttllil® C©!lVJmib)c@l St 
IM®ll)f1~ C®ll'\ltè®ll' prernees fmm O©tè(Q)ib)®ll' ttllilmlVl@llil iMJl§Jll'©llil ®©1©1lil 3/®©11!' ©©lll'il ®\P)!P)ílW f@ll' /§] 
tè®M¡pl©mll)f f®ll'M®ll'iltè®dJ M©líltè ib)®"9®1l'l§Jg)® íln©~ll'\l~® föll' ttlliJ®Öll' l\Jl¡pl©©lliJilßll'\l@ ®\?®ll'ilt 

35 of 79



I am requesting that the premises description of the fermented malt beverage license issued to 
,...~ 1J;; }10 ¿Ç,.. • be modified to exclude the dates of February 
15 through February 19, 2017, for the Columbia St. Mary's Center premises located at W 67 N890 
Washington Ave, Cedarburg, WI 53012, pursuant to s. 125.04 (3)(h) of the Wisconsin Statutes. I 
am requesting this modification so that the Milwaukee Curling Club, which exclusively occupies 
and utilizes the Columbia St. Mary's Center premises from October through March each year 
can apply for a temporary fermented malt beverage license for their upcoming event. 

(8f21YG fo 
Printed Name 

/-!cP-/) 
Date 

36 of 79



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 

MEETING DATE: January 30, 2017                                                                       ITEM NO:  9. C. 

                                                                                               

  

TITLE: Consider the Public Works and Sewerage Commission recommendation for future operations of the 

new public works yard waste drop-off site, including hours of operation, services provided, and user fee; and 

action thereon. 

         

 

           

ISSUE SUMMARY: Discussion was held at the January Public Works and Sewerage Commission meeting on 

the future operation of the yard waste drop-off site. Since this facility will be gated and unmanned, we can offer 

greatly extended hours of operation. We propose to offer 6-day per week 12-hour a day service, which should 

alleviate any backups and accommodate everyone’s schedule. A summary of the recommended fees, rules, and 

hours of operation are attached. 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff agrees with the attached Commission recommendations.  

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: See attached summary.  

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: Most of the cost to set up the yard waste site is included in the Public Works 

Building budget. There are some costs for security cameras, access cards, card reader, automatic gates, and the 

administration costs to issue cards and maintain the data base.      

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Summary of the proposed yard waste operational parameters recommended by the Public 

Works and Sewerage Commission. 

Copy of the January 12
th

, 2017 Public Works and Sewerage Commission meeting minutes. 

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY: Staff 

 

 

   

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Tom Wiza – Director of Engineering and Public Works 

                                                                            (262)375-7610 

                                                                            Joel Bublitz – Superintendent of Public Works 

                                                                            (262)375-7636  
 
 
 
 

 

37 of 79



38 of 79



CITY OF CEDARBURG 
PUBLIC WORKS AND SEWERAGE COMMISSION 

 January 12, 2017 PW/SEW20170112-1 
UNAPPROVED MINUTES 

 
A meeting of the Public Works and Sewerage Commission of the City of Cedarburg, 
Wisconsin, was held Thursday, January 12, 2017 at Cedarburg Department of Public 
Works building, W59 N306 Johnson Avenue. The meeting was called to order at 
7:00 p.m. by Mayor Kinzel. 
 
Roll Call: Present - Mayor Kip Kinzel, Council Member Mike O’Keefe, Bill 

Oakes, Charles Schumacher, Jim Slavin, Judy Guse, 
Bob Dries, Sandra Beck 

   
 
 

Absent - Gary Graham 

 Also Present - Director of Engineering & Public Works Tom Wiza, 
Public Works Superintendent Joel Bublitz,  Wastewater 
Superintendent Eric Hackert, Administrative Secretary 
Darla Drumel  

 
STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Administrative Secretary Drumel confirmed that proper legal notice of the meeting had 
been given. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
It was noted that Bob Dries should be added to those excused on all motions made in 
the minutes of November 10, 2016. 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Oakes, seconded by Mayor Kinzel, to approve 
the minutes of November 10, 2016 with the correction to add “Dries” to the list of 
Commissioners excused on all motions made at the meeting. The motion carried 
without a negative vote. 
 
COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS 
 
No comments or suggestions were offered at this time. 
 
DISCUSS FUTURE OPERATIONS OF THE NEW PUBLIC WORKS YARD WASTE 
DROP-OFF SITE, INCLUDING HOURS OF OPERATION, SERVICES PROVIDED 
AND USER FEE; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Director Wiza stated that with the creation of the new gated yard waste drop-off site at 
the new Public Works facility, set up with assigned pass cards, access can be more 

39 of 79



PUBLIC WORKS AND SEWERAGE COMMISSION PW/SEW20170112-2 
January 12, 2017 UNAPPROVED MINUTES 
 
flexible as far as days and hours of operation. There are already diverging opinions on 
what services should be provided and whether a fee should be charged for the pass 
cards. City staff recommendations are as follows: 
 
 $30.00 Initial Pass Card Fee 
 $30.00 Fee for Lost or Damaged Pass Card 
 
Hours of Operation: 
 Six days per week 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 
 Closed Tuesdays 
 Open March 15th through December 21st 
 
Accepting: 
Yard Waste, Grass Clippings, Brush, Cardboard, Waste Oil, Anti-Freeze, Lead Acid 
Batteries 
 
Superintendent Bublitz noted that in discussions on what could be dropped off at the 
yard; cardboard was the most requested addition. The vendor would pick the cardboard 
twice a week without a charge. If open the entire year, it would be made clear that the 
yard waste area would be the last area cleared in snow events. He recommended that it 
would be closed on Tuesdays to allow time to clear out the materials dropped off. Hours 
from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. would be fine, but low light could possibly cause problems 
with the camera images and with tripping hazards, etc. He emphasized how dangerous 
the old situation was and the intent is to keep residents out of the Public Works yard. 
 
Commissioner Oakes was receptive to a $30 fee for the initial card. Commissioner 
Schumacher agreed that a fee is appropriate. 
 
Commissioner Beck suggested that because the property owners are already paying for 
the facility, some might strongly object to paying a fee. She requested that one or two 
days the yard waste site should be open for free. 
 
Commissioner Guse opined that everyone should be treated the same. She pointed out 
that Grafton is allowing users of their facility to renew on-line. 
 
Mayor Kinzel advised that some Council Members would likely object to a fee. He 
added that a fee could be considered sometime in the future. He, however, was 
comfortable with a one-time fee and a replacement fee. 
 
Superintendent Bublitz explained that there were dangerous bottlenecks with the old 
facility. He expects that bottlenecks would be avoided with more available hours. 
 
Commissioner Schumacher moved to recommend the Common Council approve a card 
system for the new yard waste facility with the following elements: 
 

40 of 79



PUBLIC WORKS AND SEWERAGE COMMISSION PW/SEW20170112-3 
January 12, 2017 UNAPPROVED MINUTES 
 

1. A $30.00 one-time fee and a $30.00 replacement fee if the card was lost or 
damaged. (A corrupted card would be replaced without a fee as long as the old 
card is turned in.) 

2. Open 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. six (6) days a week year-round. 
3. Yard Waste, Grass Clippings, Brush, Cardboard, Waste Oil, Anti-Freeze, Lead 

Acid Batteries would be accepted at the site. 
4. That cardboard would also be collected at the site. 
5. The facility would be closed on Tuesdays. 
6. That it be made clear that the site is “self-service” only and would not be staffed. 

  
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Oakes. 
 
Commissioner O’Keefe suggested that a license plate camera be added and 
Superintendent Bublitz responded that it was investigated but was too expensive. 
 
Mayor Kinzel directed that a list of rules for the use of the facility be provided to all when 
they receive their key cards. Superintendent Bublitz reported that the facility would also 
have adequate display of the rules. 
 
Commissioner Dries wondered if the key cards could possibly be obtained through the 
mail. Staff would consider this when setting up the system for administering the key 
cards. 
 
Commissioner Beck stated that she would be voting against the motion because she 
feels that free days should be offered. 
 
The motion carried with Mayor Kinzel, Council Member O’Keefe and Commissioners 
Oaks, Schumacher, Slavin, Guse and Dries voting in favor, Commissioner Beck voting 
nay, and with Commissioner Graham absent. 
 
REPORTS 
 
Update on sewerage plant operations and discussion of monthly reports for the month 
of November and December 
Superintendent Hackert advised that operations at the plant were going well. A new 
employee will be starting in collection and another one in the laboratory. He is still 
seeking a third. It would be probably six months before some relief is provided for the 
current employees while training is occurring. 
 
He received approval to purchase of a new jet vac from Northern Sewer Products. The 
trade-in value on the old one was too low, so it will be placed on the Wisconsin auction 
site. 
 
Commissioner Guse suggested that a letter be drafted by the Commission to recognize 
the extraordinary efforts of Wastewater Department staff to maintain operations at 50% 
staffing levels. 

41 of 79



PUBLIC WORKS AND SEWERAGE COMMISSION PW/SEW20170112-4 
January 12, 2017 UNAPPROVED MINUTES 
 
 
Update on Public Works Operations 
Superintendent Bublitz reported that his crews have been out dealing with catch basins 
blocked with ice and snow during the week’s rain events. 
 
IDENTIFY FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
Commissioner Dries requested information on whether or not properties on private 
roads received property tax credit for reduced City services. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Commissioner Oakes moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:45 p.m. The motion was 
seconded by Schumacher and carried without a negative vote, with Commissioner 
Graham absent. 
 
 Darla Drumel 
 Administrative Secretary Drumel 

42 of 79



CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE:  January 9, 2017                                                                     ITEM NO:  9. D.  

 

                           

TITLE:  Consider request from Police Chief to fill a vacant Dispatcher position; and action thereon 

 

 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY:  One of the emergency services dispatchers is retiring.  His last day is February 27, 2017. 

I am requesting permission to replace this position and start the hiring process.  It may take up to two months to 

hire a replacement, followed by several months of training. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Authorize the hiring of one dispatcher to fill the vacancy. 

 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:   

 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:  Positive impact – there will be several months that the position will be vacant and 

the new employee will start at a lower pay rate. 

 
 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  None 

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:    Chief Thomas J. Frank 

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:           Chief Frank, 375-7620 
 
 
 

 

43 of 79



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE:        January 31, 2017                                                                         ITEM NO:  9. E. 

                           

 

TITLE:  Consider revised Policy PR-1 - Park Reservations as it relates to athletic field reservations; and action 

thereon 
          

 

ISSUE SUMMARY:  The park rental fees were last changed in October 2015.  We are requesting to add 

ATHLETIC FIELD rental fees to help cover maintenance costs of our park facilities. In addition we are 

requesting to add that 75% of participants in an organization must be City of Cedarburg residents in order to 

receive the resident rental rate.  The athletic field rental fees would be $10/hour for residents and $20/hr for 

non-residents. 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:  Parks, Recreation, & Forestry 

Board approved at last meeting. 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: Positive. Potential increase in revenue. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  Revised PR-1 

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:  Mikko Hilvo, Director of Parks, Recreation, & Forestry 

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:  Mikko Hilvo 

 

 
 

 

44 of 79



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 POLICY/PROCEDURE MANUAL 
 
SUBJECT:    PARK RESERVATIONS                             PR-1 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
General: Anyone desiring use of a specific park area for their particular group; or 

anyone who wants to bring beer and/or wine into a public park, must apply 
for and obtain a Park Reservation Permit.  The only exception is if a not-
for-profit organization has reserved the entire park for a public city-wide 
event (e.g., 4th of July, Summer Sounds).  In that circumstance, individuals 
may bring beer and/or wine into the park for their personal consumption 
without a park permit. 

 
If beer or wine are to be sold, a Temporary Class "B" license must be 
obtained from the City Clerk's office (issued to “bona fide” clubs, fair 
associations or agricultural societies, churches, lodges or societies that 
have been in existence for at least six months and to veterans’ 
organizations only).   

 
The parks with comfort stations are the only parks available for rental.  
The only parks available to all parties for reservation are Adlai Horn Park, 
Cedar Creek Park, Cedar Pointe Park, Centennial Park, Zeunert Park and 
Willowbrooke Park. The Legion Park, next to the American Legion Hall, is 
primarily used in conjunction with a function at the Legion Hall.  Cedar 
Creek, Centennial and Willowbrooke Parks are divided into areas for this 
purpose, while Legion Park is rented in its entirety. 

 
Adlai Horn Park has only one area available for rental.   

 
Cedar Creek Park has five areas for reservation.  Rental of Area #1 must 
include the picnic shelter.  Area #2 must include reservation of the 
bandshell.  The park also has playground equipment and a comfort 
station. 

  
Cedar Pointe Park has only one area available for rental which includes a 
picnic shelter.  The park also has playground equipment and a comfort 
station.  If the baseball field is to be used, it must be reserved. 

 
Centennial Park has 3 areas for reservation.  The gazebo must be rented 
with Area #1.  The park has a comfort station, playground equipment, and 
two lagoons. The park is adjacent to the Cedarburg Community Pool. 

 
Willowbrooke Park is divided into 2 areas. 

 
Zeunert Park has only one area available for rental which includes a picnic 
shelter. 

 
Legion Park is not divided into areas.  An "All Areas" park fee is charged 
for reserving this park. 

 
Boy Scout Park is rented only for community-wide events and is not 
available for private picnics.  An "All Areas" park fee is charged for 
reserving this park. 45 of 79



Reservations for all park facilities are handled by the Parks and 
Recreation Department. Cedarburg Community Pool rentals are handled 
by the Pool Manager.  NOTE: Picnic tables will be provided for each 
reserved area.  

 
Exemption(s) from park rental fees are provided for the Strawberry 
Festival, Fall Wine and Harvest Festival, Winter Festival, German Festival, 
the 4th of July Celebration, and Summer Sounds.  No other exemptions 
will be allowed. 

 
Procedure: 1. Applicant for a park permit requests a particular date and park area. 

The schedule is checked to verify availability.  If available, an application 
form is filled out in its entirety, particularly noting the person in charge and 
his/her telephone number and address.  

 
2.  The applicant is advised of the appropriate fee as shown on 
Attachment "A". The fee must be paid at the time of application.   

 
If beer or wine are to be sold, an application for a Temporary Class "B" 
license should be completed at the City Clerk's office.  Cost of the license 
is $10, payable upon issuance by the Clerk's office.  If hours are 
requested other than those listed in Policy CC-15, Common Council 
approval is needed.  The applicant should check filing deadlines with the 
Clerk's office. 
 
The use of loudspeakers or amplifying devices in the parks of the City of 
Cedarburg is prohibited unless the party desiring to use such loudspeaker 
or amplifying device first obtains a permit from the Chief of Police, as 
required in Section 11-2-9 of the Municipal Code. 

 
3.  Upon payment of fee, three (3) copies of the completed application 
form are made. The original copy of the reservation is given to the 
applicant, along with a map showing the park area reserved.  The 
applicant is advised to have the reservation slip, as well as the Temporary 
Class "B" license, if selling beer and/or wine with them at the park on the 
day of picnic. 

 
One copy of the reservation is given to the Police Department; one is kept 
in the Parks and Recreation Department file, and one to the Parks and 
Forestry Superintendent. 

  
4.  A refund can be made to applicants requesting such a refund, when 
the event was cancelled due to rain-out, or if the park reservation is 
cancelled by the applicant giving such notice to City Hall at least 24 hours 
(including a full 8-hour work day) prior to the date reserved.  The fee paid 
for a Temporary Class "B" license is not refundable. 

 
     Approved: 02/18/88 Parks and Recreation Commission 
      Revised:   03/15/89 Revised:   12/11/95 Revised:   10/29/07 
 Revised:   03/14/90 Revised:   12/13/99 Revised:   12/14/09 
     Revised:   10/28/91 Revised:   12/18/00 Revised:   11/28/11 
     Revised:   11/30/92 Revised:    02/12/07 Revised:    10/26/15  
            

 

 46 of 79



CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 POLICY/PROCEDURE MANUAL 
 
SUBJECT:        FEE POLICY "All Areas" Rental  Attachment "A" 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
PARKS CITY RESIDENT* NON-RESIDENT* 
 
Boy Scout Park $60.00 $120.00 
   No Electric Power Available     
Boy Scout Building $100.00 $200.00 
_______________________________________________________________ 
 
Cedar Creek Park  $200.00 $400.00 
_______________________________________________________________ 
 
Centennial Park $200.00 $400.00 
 (Excluding Pool) 
_______________________________________________________________ 
 
Legion Park $60.00 $120.00 
    No Electric Power Available 
_______________________________________________________________ 
 
Georgetown Park $60.00 $120.00 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Adlai Horn Park $60.00 $120.00 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Wegmann Park $60.00 $120.00 
________________________________________________________________ 
  
Woodland Park $60.00 $120.00 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Wurthmann Park $60.00 $120.00 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Pioneer Park $60.00 $120.00 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Ball Field/hour $20.00 $40.00 
no prep     
________________________________________________________________ 
  
Ball Field-lights, no prep $40.00 $80.00 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Ball Field-no lights, prep $90.00 $120.00 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Ball Field-lights, prep $120.00 $170.00 
________________________________________________________________ 47 of 79



 
Ball Field-prep only hourly rate + benefits +10%; hourly rate + benefits + 20% 
_____________________________________________________________ 
 
Football field same as ballfields 
_____________________________________________________________ 
TOURNAMENTS 
Ball Field/day $200.00 $300.00 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Ball Field Deposit $100.00 $100.00 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Tennis Court/hour/court $10.00 $20.00 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Basketball Court/hour $10.00 $20.00 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Parks Athletics Fields/hour $10.00 $20.00 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Volleyball Court/hour/court $10.00 $20.00 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Court Deposit None None 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Photography-Commercial & $30.00 $30.00 
Advertising/hour/day $200.00 $200.00 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Equipment-Park Bench $5.00 $10.00 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Equipment-Picnic Table $10.00 $20.00 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Equipment-Recreation $10.00 $20.00 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Equipment-Deposit $25.00 $25.00 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
*Includes Wisconsin and Ozaukee County Sales Tax of 5.6% 
  

48 of 79



 
 CITY OF CEDARBURG Attachment "B" 
 POLICY/PROCEDURE MANUAL 
 
 
FEE SCHEDULE FOR PARK AREAS AND BUILDINGS 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 CITY RESIDENT NON-RESIDENT* 
 
ALL CITY PARKS 
 
Designated Park Areas $50.00 each Area $100.00 each Area 
 
  (Cedar Creek #3, #4, & #5; Willowbrooke #1 & #2; Centennial #2 & #3) 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
CEDAR CREEK PARK 
 
Band Shell w/Area 2 $80.00 $160.00 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
CEDAR CREEK PARK 
 
Shelter Building w/Area 1 $80.00 $160.00 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
CENTENNIAL PARK 
 
Gazebo w/Area 1 $80.00 $160.00 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
CEDAR POINTE PARK 
 
Shelter Building $80.00 $160.00 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
ZEUNERT PARK 
 
Shelter Building $80.00 $160.00 
 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Definition of Residency 
 
Parks 
A resident is defined as anyone whose permanent residence is within the corporate city 
limits of Cedarburg.  Individuals living within the town of Cedarburg or Cedarburg School 
District, but not within the corporate city limits of Cedarburg are considered non-residents 
and pay non-resident rates. 
 
*Non-resident includes anyone living in the Town of Cedarburg    

49 of 79



 
 
PARKS, RECREATION AND FORESTRY BOARD                                   PARK20170104-2 
January 4, 2017       UNAPPROVED 
 
Motion made by Glenn Herold, seconded by Scott King, to deny any possible proposals to build a 
practice baseball field at Prairie View Park. Motion carried without a negative vote with Paul 
Rushing excused. 
     
Review Athletic Field Rental Fees for 2017; and Action Thereon 
Director Hilvo explained current rental fees and introduced a potential athletic field rental fee for 
2017.  The fees would be $10 per hour for a resident of the City of Cedarburg and $20 per hour for a 
non-resident.  Terry Wagner asked if these fees are comparable to other communities and Director 
Hilvo stated that they are.  Board Members also discussed how many participants must be a resident 
of the City of Cedarburg and Director Hilvo said it should be 75% at least.   
 
Motion made by Terry Wagner, seconded by Glenn Herold, to approve the addition of athletic field 
rental fees of $10 per hour for residents of the City of Cedarburg and $20 per hour for non-residents 
with the addition that 75% of a group’s participants must be City of Cedarburg residents to receive 
the resident rate.  Motion carried without a negative vote with Paul Rushing excused. 
 
Consider 2017 Cedarburg Community Pool Fees; and Action Thereon 
Director Hilvo explained that since the Town of Cedarburg pulled out of the pool agreement, the 
Pool Commission will be dissolved and the Parks, Recreation and Forestry Board will now be 
handling pool related issues.  Director Hilvo is not recommending fees be increased this season 
because fees have increased every previous year in recent history.  He believes that since the Town of 
Cedarburg residents will be considered non-residents at the pool, this will help to increase pool 
revenues.  He is also including a 10% early bird discount and 5% Cedarburg Friends of Recreation 
group discount if a season pass is bought by April 28, 2017.       
 
Motion made by Glenn Herold, seconded by Scott King, to approve the proposed 2017 Cedarburg 
Community Pool fees with the addition of a 10% early bird discount and a 5% Cedarburg Friends of 
Recreation group discount.  Motion carried without a negative vote with Paul Rushing excused. 
  
Discuss Beer Garden at the Cedarburg Community Pool; and Action Thereon 
Director Hilvo explained that Gordon Goggins, owner of the Stilt House, has approached him in 
regards to taking over beer garden operations for the 2017 season.  The beer gardens would be at the 
pool as they were last year, but the Stilt House would take over coordinating the events.  They would 
also split the proceeds from the event with the Cedarburg Friends of Recreation. 
 
Motion made by Scott King, seconded by Glenn Herold, to approve the beer garden schedule and 
proposal for 2017.  Motion carried without a negative vote with Paul Rushing excused. 
 
Discuss Behling Field Restoration; and Action Thereon 
Director Hilvo said that because of the creek cleanup, there are numerous barren areas surrounding 
Behling Field and they need to come up with a plan as to what to put in those areas.  Council 
Member Verhaalen inquired about the number of trees that are still up in the left field area and 
Director Hilvo said there are not many remaining because of the cleanup path.  Director Hilvo asked 
the Board members to look at these areas and come back to the next meeting with suggestions on 
what to do with the space.   
 

50 of 79



 

 CITY OF CEDARBURG 

MEETING DATE:  January 30, 2017                                                           ITEM NO:  9. F. 
 
TITLE:  Discussion and possible action on proposed Ordinance No. 2017-04 creating Sec. 7-1-26 of 
the Municipal Code of Ordinances pertaining to the keeping of domesticated chickens 
 
ISSUE SUMMARY:  After receiving numerous inquiries about the raising of chickens in the City of 
Cedarburg, staff was asked to draft an ordinance governing chickens and that draft is before you for 
consideration here tonight. This ordinance will serve to establish the rules that will govern the raising 
chickens in Cedarburg. Under this Ordinance, those raising chickens will be limited to no more than 
four domesticated chickens on a lot so long as the chicken raising activity does not disturb adjacent 
neighbors. Chicken raising activity will be restricted to the rear yard only and all coops, pens, nesting 
boxes and any other structure must be located at least 30 feet from a neighboring residential 
structure. All coops and pens must be clean, dry and kept in a neat and sanitary condition. To insure 
that impacts of raising chickens are keep to a minimum, this ordinance establishes a permitting 
process and sets forth all conditions that must be achieved and then maintained throughout the 
chicken keeping operation.     
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve  
 
BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: N/A 
 
BUDGETARY IMPACT:  N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

 Ordinance No. 2017-04 
 
INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:  Cedarburg Common Council 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Jonathan P. Censky, City Planner, 262-375-7610 
 

 

51 of 79



CITY OF CEDARBURG 

ORDINANCE NO. 2017-04 

KEEPING OF DOMESTICATED CHICKENS  

 
An Ordinance Creating Section 7-1-26 

Of the City of Cedarburg Code of Ordinances 
 

WHEREAS, the City desires to provide for the health, safety, and well-being of its 
residents, to ensure and maintain property conditions and values, and to provide a 
domestic and sustainable source of nourishing food through limited chicken egg 
production in a residential environment respecting its urban surroundings and rural 
origins; 

THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin do ordain as 
follows: 

That a new section be created in the City of Cedarburg Code of Ordinances as 

follows: 

SEC. 7-1-26 KEEPING OF DOMESTICATED CHICKENS 

(a) Purpose. The purpose of this section is to establish conditions under which 
small-scale keeping of domestic chickens for personal use and enjoyment may 
be permitted on lots zoned for single-family residential use. 
 

(b) Definitions. In this section: 
(1) “Abutting property” means all real property that in any way shares a boundary 

with the real property of the applicant or permittee. 
(2) “Chicken” means a female hen (Gallus domesticus) of any age, including 

chicks. “Chicken” should be interpreted to encompass the singular and the 

plural. 
(3) “Coop” means an enclosed structure in which a chicken roosts or is housed. 
(4) “Rear yard” has the meaning set forth in Section 13-1-240(b)(123), as 

amended, of this Code. 
 

(c) Permit and Compliance With Section Required.  

(1) No owner of real property shall keep or allow to be kept a live chicken within 
the City without a valid permit issued under this section. 

(2) No occupant of real property shall keep or allow to be kept a live chicken 
within the City unless the occupant holds a valid permit issued under this 

52 of 79



section or the owner of the real property holds a valid permit issued under this 
section. 

(3) No owner or occupant of real property shall keep a live chicken within the City 
contrary to the terms of this section or contrary to the terms of any permit 
issued under this section. 

 

(d) Procedure Governing Permits. 

(1) To apply for a permit under this section, the applicant must complete and 
submit the following to the Building Inspector: 

(i) An application form signed by all owners of record. If an owner of 
record is a trust or business entity, the application form shall be 
signed by the trustee, a corporate officer, or member or manager of 
a limited liability entity. If the applicant is a tenant or occupant of the 
premises, the application form must be signed by the applicant and 
be countersigned by all owners of record as evidence of the 
owner’s consent to the tenant or occupant obtaining a permit. 

(ii) The registration number of the applicant’s completed Livestock 
Premises Registration with the Wisconsin Department of 
Agriculture, Trade, and Consumer Protection; 

(iii) A non-refundable application fee as set forth in the annual fee 
schedule; 

(iv) A site plan showing the location of all structures located on the 
applicant’s real property, the location of all structures located on all 

abutting property, and the site of the proposed coop. 
(2) Each permit shall pertain to a single parcel of real property as set forth in the 

property tax records of the City. 
(3) A permit shall be issued only for a parcel which is zoned for single-family 

residential use. No permit shall be issued for any parcel which contains a 
condominium, duplex, or any type of multi-family residential use. 

(4) Each permit shall allow the keeping of no more than four (4) chickens in strict 
compliance with the conditions set forth in subsection (e). 

(5) A permit shall not be transferable in any way. 
(6) The permit year commences on January 1 and end on December 31 of each 

calendar year. Permits applied for after January 1 of a year will expire on 
December 31 of that year; permit fees shall not be pro-rated. 

(7) If there are no changes to be made to the information submitted in the original 
application, a permittee shall renew the permit annually by paying the renewal 
fee. If the permittee wishes to make changes, the permittee shall submit a 
new full application.  
 

53 of 79



(e) Conditions for Keeping Chickens. The following conditions shall apply to each 
permit issued under this section: 
1. No roosters or other crowing fowl are permitted. 
2. Noise from chickens shall not be so loud as to disturb a person of ordinary 

sensitivity. 
3. No chicken may be kept within a principal residence or a garage. 
4. Chickens shall be kept as pets and for personal use only. No owner shall sell 

or barter eggs or engage in chicken breeding or fertilizer production for 
commercial purposes; 

5. Chickens shall be housed in a coop. A coop shall be no less than three (3) 
cubic feet of space per chicken and must be connected to a secured and fully 
ventilated pen (also required) which contains not less than seven cubic feet of 
space per chicken and an appropriately sized nesting box (also required) at a 
rate of not less than one box per two birds. Pens shall be properly sized as 
will permit full spread of the kept birds wingspan and allow each chicken to 
walk and run; 

6. No person shall keep a chicken in any location on the property other than the 
rear yard. 

7. All coops, pens, nesting boxes, and any other structure or enclosure 
associated with the keeping of chickens must be located at least 30 feet from 
a neighboring residential structure, at least five feet from a side or rear 
property line and at least five feet from the residence on the property where 
the chickens, or other similar domesticated foul, are kept. 

8. Coops and pens shall not be located closer than 75 feet from the ordinary 
high water mark of a lake, stream, creek or river. 

9. Upon death of a chicken, the permittee must promptly dispose of the chicken 
in a sanitary manner; 

10. The onsite slaughtering of chickens is prohibited;   
11. Chickens shall be kept and handled in a sanitary manner. 
12. Chickens must be kept in a coop and pen when not being monitored by a 

responsible individual. Chickens shall be secured in the coop during non-
daylight hours; 

13. The coop and pen system shall be properly designed, laid-out and maintained 
as will provide safe and healthy living conditions for chickens while minimizing 
adverse impacts on the neighborhood through use of material, colors, 
architecture and special site design that are complimentary to the existing 
buildings on the premise and in the surrounding area. 

14. All coops must be clean, dry and kept in a neat and sanitary condition at all 
times. 

15. The coop shall be enclosed on all sides and have a roof and doors. Access 
doors must be able to be shut and locked at night. Opening windows and 
vents must be covered with predator and bird-proof wire or fencing of no more 
than one-inch openings. 

16. All enclosures must provide adequate ventilation as well as sun protection, 
and be sanitary, insulated, weatherproofed and impermeable to rodents, wild 
birds and predators, including dogs and cats. These enclosures must also be 

54 of 79



sound and moisture-proof and maintained in good repair with sufficient space 
for freedom of movement and retention of body heat with elevated perches for 
natural roosting position. The nesting boxes must be elevated off the ground; 

17. Provisions must be made for the routine removal and lawful disposal of 
chicken waste in order to prevent any adverse effects related to odor or 
unsanitary conditions;  

18. Chickens shall not be turned loose or taken to the local humane society when 
no longer wanted. 

19. In addition to compliance with the requirements of this section, no one shall 
keep a chicken that causes any nuisance, unhealthy condition, creates a 
public health threat, or otherwise interferes with the normal use of property 
and the enjoyment of life by humans or other animals. 

(f) Inspection and Orders.  The City shall have the power, whenever it may deem 
reasonably necessary, to enter a structure or property where a chicken is kept to 
ascertain whether the permittee is in compliance with this Section.  The permittee 
shall be responsible for all costs associated with inspections. In addition to all 
other remedies available to the City, the Building Inspector may issue orders 
requiring compliance with the provisions of this Section. 

(g) Permit Revocation.  In addition to all other remedies available to the City, the 
City shall revoke a permit issued under this section in the event that the Building 
Inspector has issued two or more violations of this Section to a permittee.  Once 
a permit is revoked, it shall not be reissued. 

This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and posting. 

Passed and adopted this 30th day of January 2017. 

 

                                                     ________________________________ 
                                                     Kip Kinzel, Mayor    
 
 
Countersigned:    
 
______________________________ 
Constance K. McHugh, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form:  
 
_________________________________ 
Michael P. Herbrand, City Attorney  
 
 
 

55 of 79



56 of 79



57 of 79



58 of 79



59 of 79



60 of 79



61 of 79



62 of 79



63 of 79



64 of 79



65 of 79



66 of 79



67 of 79



68 of 79



69 of 79



70 of 79



71 of 79



72 of 79



73 of 79



74 of 79



75 of 79



76 of 79



77 of 79



78 of 79



79 of 79


	Agenda
	CC Min 01-09-17
	Blue Sheet - B-3 Text Amendment
	Ord 2017-02 - B-3 Text Amendment
	PC Min 11-07-16
	Residential Uses in the B-3 District
	Blue Sheet - Glen at Cedar Creek Rezone
	Ord 2017-03 - Glen at Cedar Creek Rezoning
	PC Min 08-01-17
	FEMA Letter
	Floodplain Boundary Exhibit A
	Blue Sheet - Premise Desc Change
	Premises Description Requests
	Blue Sheet - DPW Yard Operations
	Proposed Yard Waste Site Operation
	PW&S Min 01-12-17
	Blue Sheet - Dispatcher Vacancy
	Blue Sheet - PR-1 Park Reservations
	PR-1 - Park Reservations
	PRF Bd Minutes 01-04-17
	Blue Sheet - Chicken Ordinance
	Ord 2017-04 - Chickens
	Bills
	City Administrators Report



